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Lewis Street is located in the heart of downtown Hartford, one block 
west of Main Street and runs for one block north to south from Gold 
Street to Pearl Street. The south portion of this block and adjacent 
structures on Trumbull and Gold Street are hereby nominated to the 
National Register. Five modest mid-nineteenth century brick houses 
remain in a cluster on the street. Adjoining Lewis Street to the 
east are the Old Burying Ground and Center Congregational Church and 
to the south is Bushnell Park, both National Register properties.
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Of the five circa-1850 houses, the two on the south side of the street 
are occupied by a law firm. Of the three across the street, one is 
devoted to offices, one is the University Club and one is vacant (firm 
plans exist for its use as a restaurant). On the southeast corner is a 
large Georgian Revival turn-of-the-century church house of the 
Congregational Church. Other buildings on the street include office 
buildings, and on the northeast corner is a multi-story parking garage.

The nineteenth century appearance and atmosphere of the Lewis Street 
district make it quite distinct in the center of downtown Hartford. 
The street developed in the first half of the nineteenth century as a 
group of modest frame and brick structures. Five of the brick houses 
remain.

The three on the east side of the street, of Greek Revival character, 
are similar in appearance, scale, and plan, and have identical doorways, 
suggesting that they were built, by the same builder before 1850. Austin 
Daniels, a joiner, owned the property and lived on this side of the 
street and may have been the builder.

On the west side of the street, two houses remain.for which the record 
is clearer. Lewis Rowell, a joiner, established his shop on Lewis 
Street in the 1840's and in the early 1850's built 25 Lewis Street as 
his home. Several years later he built 27 Lewis Street which was 
constructed as a semi-detached duplicate of the first house. These 
two structures, with their heavy cornice overhangs and elaborate Ionic 
portions, reflect the Italianate influence of the times.

A synopsis of buildings on the street follows: 

West Side:

#1 Lewis Street-a simple three-story brick building probably erected 
prior to 1850 as a residence. It has been somewhat altered over the 
years, but much of the original fabrick remains. Now used as law offices

#3-9 Lewis Street- a two-story brick commercial building erected 
in 1929. It has a notable parapet front gable. It is presently owned 
by an architectural firm who occupy the premises as their offices.
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#15-21 Lewis Street-a five-story brick and sandstone office building 
constructed c. 1920. The facade is notable for its pink colored 
sandstone piers framing pairs of windows and five arcades which are 
occupied by ground floor businesses.

#25 Lewis Street-built in 1851 by Lewis Rowell, a joiner, as 
his two-story brick residence. The house has an elaborate Ionic 
portico and heavy wooden cornice. The panelled front door is 
surrounded by sidelights and transom light decorated with acanthus 
leaf consoles. In 1926, an 11' x 26' shop was projected out to the 
sidewalk brick with a large bow window, sympathetic to the design of 
the house. The architects were Smith & Bassette.

#27 Lewis Street is a duplicate of #25 Lewis Street. This house 
was built by Lewis Rowell in 1855. The two houses have always been 
semi-detached and are now owned and occupied as a unit by a law firm.

#31-33 Lewis Street is a small office building constructed in 
1928 by W. F. Brooks, Architect. It is a twentieth century building 
designed in the classical tradition. It is built of brick with 
considerable marble detailing, including the use of marble for 
steps, keystone window headers and cornices. There is an elaborate 
fan window with fluted Corinthian pilasters in the main elevation.

East Side:

#60 Gols Street, corner of Lewis, First Church of Christ (Center 
Church) Church House - a substantial brick building constructed in 
1908 in the Georgian Revival style with granite ashlar foundations and 
heavy granite quoins at corners. The building has a colossal Ionic 
front facade with a heavy triangular pediment in which is an elliptical 
fan window. A smaller version of the same entranceway appears on a 
side facade.

#24 Lewis Street is a modest brick house constructed prior to 
1850, perhaps by Austin Daniels. The front door which is located in 
the north bay of the three-bay main facade, has a simple three-light 
transom, plus two sidelights on each side. The door jams are molded 
to suggest colonettes. Massive red sandstone steps lead up to the 
porch and front door. The house is owned by the adjoining church and 
is rented as commercial offices.
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#30 Lewis Street is one of the three similar two-story red brick 
houses on this side of the street. Since 1908 it has been occupied by 
the University Club who in 1926 constructed a five-story brick addition 
to the rear, W. F. Brooks, Architect.

#36 Lewis Street is similar to #24 and #30 Lewis Street. This 
three bay, two-story brick house was probably built prior to 1850. 
It has a heavy one-story front porch supported by four Doric columns. 
The porch is probably a later addition. Presently the premises are 
vacant, but an active plan exists to renovate the building for use 
as a restaurant while maintining the exterior appearance. The house 
is owned by the University Club.

It should be noted that on the east side of the street, within the 
district, there are only two property owners - the Church and the 
University Club. On the west side of the street the properties are 
owned and occupied by lawyers and architects or are successful and 
well-rented office buildings. Thus, the district is now in strong hands 
of owners who are interested in maintaining its historical character.
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Lewis Street is being nominated to the National Register of Historic 
Places because it is the last of the mid-nineteenth century/early 
twentieth century blocks in central downtown Hartford, ronnecticut. 
It contains structures which are high-style, characteristic of the eras 
in which they were built.

Lewis Street is significant as a mid-nineteenth century neighborhood of 
modest homes, together with a turn-of-the-century church building and 
early twentieth century office buildings. It is now the only 
extant district of its era in central downtown Hartford? all others 
having been destroyed.

in the beginning, Lewis Street was the westernmost street on the edge 
of Hartford as the city developed westward from the Connecticut River. 
The street got its start in 1798 as a narrow passageway when title was 
vested in the municipality by deed of Ralph Pomeroy, William Goodwin, 
John Goodwin, and Solomon Taylor. In 1841 the passageway was widened 
and named Wells Street after Dr. Horace Wells (1815-1848), inventor 
of anesthesia who lived on the corner of Pearl Street. In 1883 it was 
renamed Lewis Street after the. late Lewis Rowell, joiner and principal 
property owner on both sides of the street. In 1929 a petition was 
circulated to change the name to Wall Street in recognition of a 
number of brokerage and investment houses located on the street at that 
time, but this proposed change was voted down by the city's Street 
Commission.
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